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Chairman’s Statement 3 i # 3

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”),
I present the annual report of Winfoong
International Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2013.
[

FINANCIAL RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded

consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$37.1 million.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS,
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

During the year, the Group continued to engage in property related
businesses and provision of horticultural services and securities
trading business. The Group's turnover of the year was mainly
derived from horticultural services. No sale of properties was
transacted in the year.

The Group recorded loss for the year of approximately HK$37.1
million. The increase in net loss was mainly due to the recognition

of equity settled share-based transactions.
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i $#t 3

The Company remains confident in the Hong Kong property
market, the prestigious location and the superior quality of the

Group's development properties.

The net asset value of the Company per share as at 31 December
2013 was approximately HK$0.12 (2012: HK$0.13) based on the
2,631,652,084 (2012: 2,631,652,084) shares issued.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 33 employees.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

All the Group's funding and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level. There is no
significant change in respect of treasury and financing policies from
the information disclosed in the Company's latest annual report.
The Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are denominated and
the Group conducts its business transactions principally in Hong
Kong dollars. The exchange rate risk of the Group is not considered
significant, no financial instruments for hedging purpose are

employed.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there was no outstanding bank
loan. The Group's working capital requirements are funded by bank

deposits.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my colleagues
on the Board and the staff members of the Group for their strong

support and valuable contribution.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 February 2014
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Year ended 31 December 2013 #F - F— =41 " H =+—HIFFE&

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to raising the standard of corporate
governance within the Group in order to enhance the transparency
in disclosure of material information. The Group has complied
with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the "“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year
except the deviations stated in the following paragraphs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific
enquiry by the Company, all directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CoMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprises three executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors, who
have appropriate corporate experience. The composition of the
Board during the year ended 31 December 2013 was as follows:

Executive directors

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick (Chairman and Managing Director)
Cheong Sim Eng

Cheong Hooi Kheng

Cheong Kim Pong (resigned on 18 November 2013)

Independent non-executive directors
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

Leung Wing Ning

Kwik Sam Aik

Details of the directors’ qualifications, directorships and other
particulars are set out on pages 32 to 33.

Among the members of the Board, Messrs. Cheong Pin Chuan,
Patrick and Cheong Sim Eng and Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng
are brothers and sister. Save as disclosed herein, to the best
knowledge of the Company, there is no other financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships among the
members of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

FuncTions oF THE BoARD

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs
of the Company and the Group. Apart from its statutory duties,
the Board reviews and approves the Company’s and the Group’s
strategic plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions, annual business plans, reviews the financial
performance of the Company and the Group and evaluates the
performance and compensation of senior management personnel.

Guidelines are established which specify certain material
transactions that require the Board’s approval which include
mergers and acquisitions, divestments and major capital
expenditure.

The Board has separate and independent access to management
and the company secretary. Management provides the Board with
reports of the Company’s and the Group's performance, financial
position and prospects, and these are reviewed by the Board at
Board meeting. Directors may obtain independent professional
advice in furtherance of their duties at the Company’s and the
Group's expense.

BoarRD MEETINGS

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis during the year to
review the Company’s and the Group’s operations and financial
results. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board held
ten meetings. Details of attendance of the directors at the Board
meetings are as follows:
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Attendance at Board meetings

EEggRLERE

Executive directors HITEE
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick $EH 82

(Chairman and Managing Director) (FEFEFALTIE) 10/10
Cheong Sim Eng et 6/10
Cheong Hooi Kheng eVl 6/10
Cheong Kim Pong (Note 1) B (M) 1/10
Independent non-executive directors B INTESE
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert fR LA 7/10
Leung Wing Ning oK EE 7/10
Kwik Sam Aik B=ia 5/10
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
convened one general meeting. Details of attendance of the
directors at the general meeting are as follows:

P ()
BesCK
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Attendance at general meeting

BRERAGHERE

Executive directors HiTEE
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick $E N 2

(Chairman and Managing Director) (FEFEFAHTE) 0/1
Cheong Sim Eng et 0/
Cheong Hooi Kheng fEaesVEl 0N
Cheong Kim Pong (Note 1) Eers (MsE1) 0N
Independent non-executive directors BIINTEE
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert R LA 1M
Leung Wing Ning R E 11
Kwik Sam Aik L= 01
Note: Bt ot -

1. Mr. Cheong Kim Pong resigned on 18 November 2013.

The code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code provides that the
chairman of the board should attend annual general meeting.
However, due to another business meeting engagement, Mr.
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick was unable to attend the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 25 June 2013 (the "AGM”
for 2012 annual results). Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert who is the
independent non-executive director of the Company, took the
chair of the AGM and answered questions from the shareholders
at the AGM.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
there are three independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive directors, one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or relevant financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2015.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all of
them to be independent.

DirecTORS’ TRAINING

The code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code provides that all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the directors of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company had
arranged to provide to all directors with the “A Guide on Directors’
Duties” issued by the Companies Registry. The directors had
noted and studied the above mentioned document. Messrs.
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, Leung Wing Ning and Kwik Sam Aik
had also attended several forums and training seminars held
by professional organizations. The Company had received from
each of the directors of the Company the confirmations on taking
continuous professional training.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles

of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan,
Patrick is both the chairman of the Board as well as the Group's
chief executive (“CE")/managing director. Given the size and that
the Company's and the Group's current business operations and
administration have been relatively stable and straightforward, the
Board is satisfied that one person is able to effectively discharge
the duties of both positions. However, going forward, the Board
will review from time to time the need to separate the roles of the
chairman and the CE if the situation warrants it.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Employees (including directors) are remunerated according
to their performance and working experience as well as
the prevailing market conditions. On top of basic salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options may by granted to eligible
employee by reference to the individual's performance. In
addition, the Group also provides social security benefits to its
staff such as mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company’s corporate governance functions are carried out
by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board in compliance with code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code, which include (a) to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board; (b) to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of the
directors and senior management of the Company; (c) to review
and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and the directors of the Company; and
(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and as at the date of this
report, the Board had reviewed the corporate governance matters
of the Company. Saved for the deviations disclosed under the
“Board of Directors — General Meeting” and “Chairman and Chief
Executive”, the Company had complied with the principles and
applicable code provisions of the CG Code and was not aware
of any non-compliance to relevant applicable legal and regulatory
requirements.

AupiT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment and removal
of external auditor, review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting, and overseeing the
internal control procedures of the Company. At present, the Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Messrs. Chan Yee
Hoi, Robert, Leung Wing Ning and Kwik Sam Aik, all of whom are
independent non-executive directors. Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert
currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Aupit CommiTTEE (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to make recommendation on the appointment of
external auditor, review financial statements, financial reporting
system and internal control procedures of the Company. Details of
attendance of each Audit Committee member at the meetings are
as follows:

Names of the Audit Committee members

EREEERENA

Chan Yee Hoi, Robert [& LA
(Chairman of the Committee) (ZE2F/F)

Leung Wing Ning 2K B

Kwik Sam Aik =%

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference.
The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to review and make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all directors
and senior management of the Company. At present, the
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, comprising
two independent non-executive directors, Mr. Leung Wing Ning
and Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, and one executive director, Mr.
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick. Mr. Leung Wing Ning currently serves
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

HRERG
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Attendance at Audit
Committee meetings

BEREEESRHERH

2/2
2/2
2/2
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
REMUNERATION CoMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration
Committee held four meetings to review and make recommendation
on the remuneration policy and structure relating to all directors and
senior management of the Company. Details of attendance of each
Remuneration Committee member at the meeting are as follows:

Names of the Remuneration Committee members

FMEESREN R

Leung Wing Ning 2K ER
(Chairman of the Committee) (ZE&8FF)

Chan Yee Hoi, Robert [R LA/

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick $E N 82

The remuneration of directors is determined with reference
to their performance and working experience as well as the
prevailing market conditions. Details of emoluments of directors
for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements. The emoluments paid to senior management
for the year ended 31 December 2013 falls within the following

WFR A (5)
L EAE )

HE-T—=F+-A=1+—8LFE %
MZEGRITUAGBENBH AR MEE
EREREEE 2 HMBR REB L EIE
HiEEE®E  SFWEEeXELRgE 2
HENIAS -

Attendance at Remuneration
Committee meeting

FHEESE SR HERH

4/4
4/4
3/4

WIS 05 R B R TAE KSR
BeBAT DR E « e —F—=Z4F+"A
b EIR R A T R S S
RKMEE7 - B2 _F =4+ _H=1+—HI:
AP BE S AT SE N B 2 H R A L
:

bands:
Number of senior management
SREBEABAH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 & 7TZ 2,000,000 % 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 #7T 2 3,000,000 7T -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7T Z 4,000,000 7T 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 /&7LE 5,000,000 % 7T 2
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

NOoMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference.
The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board on a regular basis and to make recommendations to the
Board the suitable candidates for directorship after consideration
of the nominees’ independence and quality in order to ensure
fairness and transparency of all nominations. At present, the
Nomination Committee consists of three members, comprising
two independent non-executive directors, Mr. Kwik Sam Aik and
Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, and one executive director, Mr. Cheong
Pin Chuan, Patrick. Mr. Kwik Sam Aik currently serves as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board. Details of attendance of each
Nomination Committee member at the meetings are as follows:

Names of the Nomination Committee members

REZSEHRENE

Kwik Sam Aik B='a
(Chairman of the Committee) (ZEEEF/E)

Chan Yee Hoi, Robert FR LA

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick $E N 82

HHRHA (8)

RUZHT

ARBERIRREZER ([REZEE])
BT REEBERE - REZBE IR
BERTHRNESTSZHRE  RE AR
Zlt WEZEBRBAZBIMEREERR
MEEERAENESRUKREAFLEZ
#UNERABRAATFRABEHRE R
i REZEBem=—2KEHAK  BEME
BAURTEFH R EERRUNBEER
—BHTEFERRELE - B ERKE
BERZZEBEXR -

HE_Z—=F+-"A=1+—HILFE &
HERBERITMAERURTEFTE LR
B RERER SREZEERELES
B HmERIT

Attendance at Nomination
Committee meetings

REZESESRHERH

2/2
2/2
0/2
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Year ended 31 December 2013 #% & — =4 H =+—H IF /¥

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2013, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at the date and of the Group's results
and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared
on the going concern basis in accordance with the statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 35 to 37.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the auditor of the
Company and its subsidiaries would receive approximately
HK$440,000 (2012: HK$420,000) for audit and audit related
services, HK$nil (2012: HKS$nil) for tax services and HK$60,000
(2012: HK$60,000) for other services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s system of
internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group emphasises on the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk
exposure. The Group's system of internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
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Year ended 31 December 2013 #F - F— =41 " H =+—HIFFE&

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that,
based on information furnished to it and on its own observations,
the present internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the
Group's performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and is of the view that the system
of internal control adopted for the year ended 31 December
2013 is sound and is effective to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders’ investment and the Company'’s assets.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2013, Ms. Cheng Kin Nam,
Julia was the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”). The current Company Secretary is Ms. Ho Wing Yan.
Both of them took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

VR i B e e R e 4 P ()

NEMEZERRTTAEFTERHELETRT - A
EZERER LAITRAMAERERIAR
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

CONVENING A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 3201, 9 Queen’'s Road Central, Hong Kong by post
for the attention of the Company Secretary.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To foster effective communications, the Company provided all
necessary information to the shareholders in its annual report and
interim report. The Directors or other appropriate members of
senior management of the Company will also respond to inquiries
from shareholders and investors promptly.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there has been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Year ended 31 December 2013 #F - F— =41 " H =+—HIFFE&

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
Shareholder(s), at his/their own expense, holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of requisition the right to vote at general meeting;
or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a written
request stating the resolution intended to be moved at the next
annual general meeting. The requisition signed by the relevant
shareholder(s) must be deposited at the registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
and at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at Room
3201, 9 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the annual
general meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution and not less than seven days before the annual general
meeting in the case of any other requisition. The request will be
verified with the branch share registrar of the Company and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in
the notice for such general meeting.

As mentioned in the above section headed “Convening a Special
General Meeting”, shareholder(s) can make a requisition to
convene a special general meeting and move forward a resolution
thereat. The requisition signed by the relevant shareholder(s)
must be deposited at the registered office at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 3201, 9 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary no
later than seven days prior to the date of special general meeting.
Only when the request has been verified with the branch share
registrar to be proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the resolution in the notice for such general
meeting.
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The directors herein present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company consists of investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal

subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
38to 131.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend

the payment of a final dividend.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out below.
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RESULTS *48

Year ended 31 December
BET-A=t-HLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“T-=% ZB-Zf “T—%F —T-TF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAET FAET FAET FAET

Turnover e 4,880 4,629 46,721 376,498 35,667
{Loss}/profit before taxation BwiAl (&) /& F (37,144)  (28,611) (22,825) (19,496) 85,814
Income tax expense FEHAX - - - - (144)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~EE (BR)/ &5 (37,144)  (28,611) (22,825) (19,496) 85,670
Attributable to: (G
Equity shareholders of KRARERFEA

the Company (37,144)  (28611)  (22.825)  (19,496) 85,670
Non-controlling interests RS - - - - -

(37,144) (28,611) (22,825) (19,496) 85,670

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS W~ A R Ik B hE AR

As at 31 December
Rt=ZB=1+-BH
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“T-=% ZB-Zf “T—%F —T-TF _TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THET THET THET

Total assets BEE 332,001 360,137 397,048 753,688 717,697
Total liabilities gaiE (19,147 (20,724) (25,394)  (361,409)  (297,636)

312,854 339,413 371,654 392,279 420,061

Equity attributable to equity AREERRBA
shareholders of the Company (R 312,854 339,413 371,654 392,279 420,061
Non-controlling interests SRS - _ _ _ _

312,854 339,413 371,654 392,279 420,061
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 23 to

the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2013, the Company's reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to
approximately HK$111,732,000 (2012: HK$124,608,000).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately HK$100,000 (2012: HK$101,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 38% (2012: 43%) of the total sales
for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 14% (2012: 23%).

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted
for 54% (2012: 53%) of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
13% (2012: 22%).

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates, nor those shareholders which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital had
any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick (Chairman and Managing Director)
Cheong Sim Eng

Cheong Hooi Kheng

Cheong Kim Pong (resigned on 18 November 2013)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

Leung Wing Ning

Kwik Sam Aik

In accordance with bye law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws,
Messrs. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, Leung Wing Ning and Kwik
Sam Aik will retire. Messrs. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, Leung Wing
Ning and Kwik Sam Aik, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election as independent non-executive directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
directors and chief executive in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company as required to be disclosed under
and within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (the “SFQO") were as follows:—

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY:—

g Z R R
EBNEISRIT Y RRBEARERIEE
83 MAAD T LA MR ARR—F
PO 7 S A B 18 OREBRE IR SD) 4% 1E 2 AR
Baw-

o g Z
RZB-—Z=ZF+-A=+—H EFREE
TTBRABRARE Ztn - KD RES
P BEARBESRBARGA(TESFRBE
fEeBI1) 8 XV BRZREA T 1B 2 Mk Bk
"RWT -

AR 2w JBe By B A B B By Z 35 AY ¢ —

Nature of Number and class
Name of directors interest of shares held Percentage
EEHE BRME FrsiR D88 kAR Bak
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick E e Interest of spouse 3,736,700 ordinary 0.14%
B shares (Note)
3,736,700 f%
T (P aE)
Beneficial owner 26,000,000 0.98%
ERBEBA share options
26,000,000 17
Bt
Cheong Sim Eng SEALLE Beneficial owner 26,000,000 0.98%
EnEEA share options
26,000,000 13
RN
Cheong Hooi Kheng EEW Beneficial owner 2,200,000 0.08%
EnBEEA Ordinary shares
2,200,000 %
Beneficial owner 26,000,000 0.98%
EnEEA share options
26,000,000 13
Rl
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

OF THE COMPANY:— (CONTINUED)

o ()
A2 W IRy B KR By 2 95 A < — (1)

Nature of Number and class
Name of directors interest of shares held Percentage
Y ERME PS8 B R Bt
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert RAE Beneficial owner 700,000 0.02%
EmBEBA share options
700,000 {3
FE R
Leung Wing Ning BoKE Beneficial owner 700,000 0.02%
EXHEBA share options
700,000 1%
R
Kwik Sam Aik B=a Beneficial owner 700,000 0.02%
ExBEBA share options
700,000 {3
FE R
Note: B 5

Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling, the spouse of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, was
interested in 3,736,700 shares, and as a result, Mr. Cheong is deemed to be
interested in these shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, taken to be interested
or deemed to have any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, that
were required to be entered into the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Rkt - @B E 2B - 703,736,700 A
hHEAED  ANBEERRARZERO T HEE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has two share option schemes which were adopted
on 15 April 2002 (“share option scheme 2002") and 25 June 2013
(“share option scheme 2013") for the purposes of enabling the
Group to provide incentives or rewards to eligible participants
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of the Group and to enable the Group to recruit and/or
to retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group.

The directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite eligible participants, including the directors or any employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or an affiliate, and any
consultant, agent, or advisor of the Group or an affiliate, to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
share option schemes at any time during a period as determined
by the directors of the Company and not exceeding ten years
from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised. The offer of a
grant of share options may be accepted within twenty-one days
from the date of offer upon an initial payment of HK$1 in total for
each acceptance. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than

whichever is the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of the grant,
which must be a business day;

(b)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of the grant; and

(c)  the nominal value of a share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2012

There is no ordinary share available for issue under the share
option scheme 2012 as at the date of this report. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted to any one participant in any twelve-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue from time to

time.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there is no options
outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed. The share

option scheme 2012 expired on 15 April 2012.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2013

There are 188,400,000 ordinary shares available for issue under
the share option scheme 2013 representing approximately 7.16%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report. The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted to any one participant in any twelve-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue

from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, a total of 188,400,000
share options have been granted under the share option scheme
2013. As at 31 December 2013, 188,400,000 share options
entitling the holders of which to subscribe for the Company’s

ordinary shares were outstanding.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) i S hE 3 (4
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2013 (CONTINUED) TR AR B ()
MOVEMENTS OF SHARE OPTIONS DURING THE YEAR 7 A JBE N D% i 5 )y
Number of share options
BlEsA
Exercise Outstanding Outstanding
Price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled asat
List of per share 1 January during during during during 31 December
Grantees Date of Grant of options 2013 the year the year the year the year 2013
RZE-ZF W-B-zf
BflERE -p-A KEE AEE AEE REE  TZR=T-H
REAZE RiLAS fhgia HA{TR il BT &M B RRATHE
HKS
#7
Directors EZ
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick 18 December 2013 0.1168 - 26,000,000 - - - 26,000,000
g ZE-ETZRT\R
Cheong Sim Eng 18 December 2013 0.1168 - 26,000,000 - - - 26,000,000
g ZE-ZEFZAT\R
Cheong Hooi Kheng 18 December 2013 0.1168 - 26,000,000 - - - 26,000,000
2P ZE-ETZRT\R
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert 18 December 2013 0.1168 - 700,000 - - - 700,000
RIne “E-ZEtAT\R
Leung Wing Ning 18 December 2013 0.1168 - 700,000 - - - 700,000
RKE ZE-ZEFZAT\R
Mr. Kwik Sam Ak 18 December 2013 0.1168 - 700,000 - - - 700,000
Eil:yits ZE-ETZRT\R
Subtotal - 80,100,000 - - - 80,100,000
Nt
Eligible employees
SEKES
In aggregate 18 December 2013 0.1168 - 108,300,000 - - - 108,300,000
At ZE-ZETZAT\R
Total - 188,400,000 - - - 188,400,000
Eh)

M- BhEZNEEYE —F2—=+_-A+/\Q
E-E-=F+-ATERATE - ZERER
R BRRE MR ME21 -

Note — The share options are vested immediately and exercisable from 18 December
2013 to 17 December 2023. Further details of these options are set out in
note 21 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’
interests” and “Share option scheme"” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, there
were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted at the end of year or at any time
during the year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance has
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of
their subsidiaries, at any time during the year. No contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholders of the Company or
any of their subsidiaries.

o A JBe Ay Z B

%X [ %2 ] R [ B mEntE
2z BES - AR TRETAMBRARE
FELMSRIMRYE HSFARAES -
REEEZRBRFHFB T \RZT LA
NN B SO E SR INL L P So
B35 M 1§ 35 -

WA R Z A

BB B RAM 27 FTRER B S - BEMAT IR
FHRXFRETHREY - AR FRIE
HBARATH REREMEBEA - A
AAREFHEEAERZEM -

S BB A Z 45

BRAREMMEES - AR B S E KB
REEARRHEEFMNE R R ZERBER
ZEABERNAFREEAFBEILENERS
%) o BEEA DR SR A E QR Z R
REARRHEEERMERRREREHE

BHEA -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

At 31 December 2013, interests of directors in competing

business of the Group were as follows:

o R BT R A
R-F—=#+=A=1+—RA EEREXK
EEMA T 2 EHFRA 2T

Name of Nature of
Name of directors company competing business Nature of interest
Y NSIEE BEEBME g
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Hong Fok Property development and As a director and shareholder
B Corporation construction, property
Limited{ HFC")  management, investment trading
BREXERAR MERRNEE YEER REEE REEFMKRE
([MEt8E%])  Property management, trading As a director and the

Hong Fok Land
International
Limited( HFL")

Hong Fok Land
International
Limited ([HFLJ)

Cheong Sim Eng HFC
BRREXE
HFL
HFL

Cheong Hooi Kheng HFC

EE
BRREX
HFL
HFL
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of securities

WEEE  EFHEE

spouse of a shareholder

REERBRZEE

Property development and As a director and shareholder
construction, property
management, investment trading

MEERRKEE  MEER REEE REENKRR

Property management, trading As a director
of securities

WEEE  FHEER REE

Property development and As a director and shareholder
construction, property
management, investment trading

MEBRRKEE NEER REEE REENKRR

Property management, trading As a shareholder
of securities

WEEE  FHEER AR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

At 31

December 2013, the following persons (not being directors

or chief executive of the Company) had an interest in the following

long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336

FBBH B I L Z A2

RZE—=F+ZA=+—8" TI AL
(RRAREFHEETHABRIN ZBAR
AR IR 5 K B (&5 55 336 16 2 # TE FT 17
B2 B MR 8N AR A Rz MR 1) K A8 B AR

of the SFO. 2R h AR -
Capacity Number of shares held Percentage
Name of shareholder BREE #E FrsRAEA Batt
HFC BEEE Held by controlled corporation 1,652,910,365 62.81%
BRX B EERE (Note 1)
(FitsE1)
First Strategy Investments Limited First Strategy Investments Limited Beneficial owner 628,746,775 23.89%
ERAEA
HFL HFL Held by controlled corporation 628,746,775 23.89%
BB ERRE (Note 2)
(3t 2)
Barragan Trading Corp. Barragan Trading Corp. Beneficial owner 285,312,566 10.84%
ERAEA
Praise Time Co Limited Praise Time Co Limited Beneficial owner 136,000,000 5.17%
ERAEA

Notes:

Save

HFC was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiaries, Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC Cayman”) and Hong Fok
Corporation (H.K.) Limited (“HFCHK"), did in the issued share capital of
the Company by virtue of HFC's interest in HFC Cayman and HFCHK. HFC
Cayman and HFCHK were directly interested in 976,720,587 and 47,443,003
shares of the Company respectively. HFC beneficially owned 41.57% of the
issued share capital of HFL and was deemed to have the same beneficial
interests as HFL did in 628,746,775 shares of the Company.

HFL was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Asia Limited (“HFLA"), did in the issued share
capital of the Company by virtue of HFL's interests in HFLA. HFLA was
deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned subsidiary,
First Strategy Investments Limited, did in the issued share capital of the
Company by virtue of HFLA's interest in First Strategy Investments Limited.

as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as

having an interest or short position in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company as at 31 December 2013.

MEE

(1) AL @ E %2 MHong Fok Corporation
Limited ([HFC Cayman]) B E % (&)
BRAR(DEEEERE] EaEER - Fith
BAEE2ENEAGTHFC Cayman MEREE
E¥BZBRARARIDBITRAFRES 2 BRER
#[R e HFC Cayman &SR EXEED R E#E
WA N2 71 976,720,587 A 19 K 47,443,003
MRA&(D 2 2 o R EEESEBHFLE 3T
BAA41.57% 2w LR BEHFLAARAF]
628,746,775 I ER Em s o

(2) AR HFL®Hong Fok Land Asia Limited
(HFLAD BEA#EZ - FULERAEE 2 EK
BRARIHFLARARRICHITRAMEEZE
BiEXMER - AR HFLAKRBEZ2EHB R
&) First Strategy Investments Limited Z 4%
@ MHFLARAKRARIBBITRAMES 2 E
BRI AR BB First Strategy Investments
Limited PR EER -

BREXFIHEEN RZFE—=F+2A
=+—B BREARBREEFKPE KR
EIB6 M REMEFE 2 ERMPAALE - #
|BEAM A TRARR A 2 R 5 RABRE AR 5 5 8
BHRTAR -
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information on Directors are as follows:

Messrs. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, Leung Wing Ning and Kwik
Sam Aik are each entitled to director's fees of HK$150,000 per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2013, all of which were
determined by reference to the prevailing market rate and time,
effort and expertise of the independent non-executive Directors of

the Company devoted to the Company's affairs.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions between the Group and parties regarded
as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements. No transaction
disclosed thereto constitutes connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction of the Company subject to, among other
things, reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There was no significant event subsequent to 31 December 2013.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the year
and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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AUDITOR B Y il

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended HEZZ——F+ZA=1+—HLFEHE
31 December 2011 were audited by CCIF CPA Limited. The WG HmREBERE S MEBABRAT
consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 B -BEZT—ZFRZT—=F+=A8
December 2012 and 2013 were audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) =+ RAIEFEGEMBREEHREEE
CPA Limited (“Crowe Horwath (HK)"). Crowe Horwath (HK) shall (BB)SMEBMAERAA(EEEE
retire as auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual (BB EZ - BEEEED) BRERER

general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe FEFARE LEEARRIZEENRG - I E
Horwath (HK) as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the ERFEREREG LHRE - HRARREFE

forthcoming annual general meeting. TR = 2 (B8 RANA FVZEAD -
On behalf of the Board REESFSY

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick B

Chairman SR

Hong Kong, 28 February 2014 5% ZT—MNFZAZ=+/\H
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, aged 64, is the chairman and
managing director. Mr. Cheong is a member of the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the Group
in 1991 and was appointed a director in 1996 and a member of
the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company in 2012. He has over 41 years' experience in property
development. He is a director of the Company’s substantial
shareholder, Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC"), the shares
of which are listed on The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (the “SGX"), and is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Cheong Sim Eng, aged 53, is an executive director. Mr.
Cheong graduated from the Chaminade University of Honolulu
with a Bachelor of Arts degree. He joined the Group in 1991
and was appointed a director in 1996. He has over 28 years’
experience in the construction industry. He is a director of the
Company's substantial shareholder, HFC, and is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng, aged 61, is an executive director. Ms.
Cheong is holder of a Bachelor of Science degree in Business
Administration from the California State University, Hayward
and a Master of Business Administration degree from the
Chaminade University of Honolulu. She joined the Group in 1991
and is presently senior manageress of the property development
division of the Group. She was appointed a non-executive director,
alternate to Madam Lim Ghee in 2005 and an executive director
in 2011. She has over 32 years’ experience in the construction
industry. She is a director of HFC, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and KTL Global Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the SGX.

Messrs. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and Cheong Sim Eng and Ms.
Cheong Hooi Kheng are brothers and sister.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, aged 64, is an independent non-
executive director. Mr. Chan joined the Group and was appointed
an independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company in 2004 and became as the chairman
of the audit committee of the Company in 2011. He was, in March
2012, appointed as the chairman and, in July 2012, re-designated
as a member of the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company. He graduated from the University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Social Science degree. He has over
34 years' experience in corporate restructuring, corporate finance,
capital markets, direct investment and asset management. He
held senior positions in various American banks in Hong Kong and
fund management companies.

Mr. Leung Wing Ning, aged 66, is an independent non-executive
director. Mr. Leung joined the Group and was appointed an
independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company in 2009. He was appointed as the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company in July
2012. He was educated at Stanford University, California and
New York University, New York where he obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree (Mechanical Engineering) and a Master of
Business Administration degree respectively. He has over 30
years' experience in senior management positions in international
trades and in banking and finance. He retired from Hang Seng
Bank Limited in 2007. He is an independent non-executive director
of Wing On International Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Kwik Sam Aik, aged 62, is an independent non-executive
director. Mr. Kwik joined the Group and was appointed an
independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company in 2011. He was appointed as the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company in July
2012. He graduated from the University of Singapore with a
Bachelor of Accountancy degree. He has held various senior
positions with international banks in Hong Kong, Singapore and
China. He has over 27 years of experience in banking, covering
different areas including commercial and international banking,
corporate and investment banking and capital markets.

528
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc, aged 41, is a director of the business
development division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Accounting from the University of Southern
California in the United States of America and a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Chicago
Graduate School of Business. He joined the Group in 2000 and
has over 3 years' experience in the merchant banking field and 13

years' experience in business development.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hian, Howard, aged 39, is a director of the project
management division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Accounting from the University of Southern
California in the United States of America. He joined the Group in
2004 and has over 3 years' experience in the private equity field

and 9 years' experience in project management.

Messrs. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc and Cheong Tze Hian, Howard

are the sons of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng, aged 59, is a senior manageress of
the property management division of the Group. Ms. Cheong
graduated from Armstrong College of Berkeley in the United
States of America with a Bachelor of Science degree. She
joined the Group in 1993 and has over 35 years' experience in
the planning, organising and control of office administration and
personnel management. Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng is the sister
of Messrs. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, Cheong Sim Eng and Ms.
Cheong Hooi Kheng.

Mr. Chu Yat Chun, Jackson, aged 44, is a project manager of the
property development division of the Group. Mr. Chu holds a
Master degree of Architecture from The University of Hong Kong.
He is a Registered Architect in Hong Kong, a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Architects and an Authorised Person (Architect)
under the Buildings Ordinance. He joined the Group in 2013 and
has over 20 years’ experience in design, construction and project
management of large scale construction projects in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Singapore.
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Crowe Horwath.,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF WINFOONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winfoong
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to 131, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

BEE%E (F8) SMEBRERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath International

8 M 1SWEET7IE 1BET L2
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 February 2014

Lam Cheung Shing
Practising Certificate Number P03552
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2013 2012
—E-=f —T——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B T TET
Turnover EEH 3 4,880 4,629
Cost of sales HERA (891) (900)
Gross profit E 3,989 3,729
Net (loss)/gain on trading securities RHEH(BR)/WEFE (171) 47
Other revenue H b dras 4 6,337 3,676
Other net income/(loss) Hil A/ (B18) #8 4 1471 (375)
Operating and administrative expenses mERITBEY (48,770) (35,685)
Loss from operations REEE (37,144) (28,608)
Finance costs REMAK 5(a) - (3)
Loss before taxation BB AIEE 5 (37,144) (28,611)
Income tax expense FEHRX 6(a) - -
Loss for the year EREE (37,144) (28,611)
Attributable to: PATFEAG
Equity shareholders of the Company ADAEREFEA 9 (37,144) (28,611)
Non-controlling interests JEERER - -
Loss for the year EREE (37,144) (28,611)
Loss per share ShREE 10
Basic BER HK cents (1.41) 781l HK cents (1.09) 31l
Diluted ik HK cents (1.41) 4l HK cents (1.09) 4l

The notes on pages 44 to 131 form part of these financial FLAVBEE13 B2 T BRI S B ®mE
statements. Z—8m o
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B 1 A B I 2 v g

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # £ & — =4+

H=1—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICEEH)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEIT FHET
Loss for the year FREE (37144 (28611)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) imﬂf&%ﬁﬂ&%&/(%?ﬁ
for the year (after tax and (BB REF D EAER)
reclassification adjustments)
ltems that may be reclassified HignEmnEEEacIER
subsequently to profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets: AEHESRERE
net movement in the fair value N ERE 28))F5E
reserve (net of nil tax): WmAIEFE -
- Changes in fair value —FABERZ
recognised during the year NEEED) 1,080 (5,430)
— Reclassification adjustments —pEEEERZ
for amounts transferred SR EFHERE
to profit or loss — impairment —REEE (ME4)
losses (note 4) - 1,800
1,080 (3,630)
Total comprehensive loss FRAZHBELTE
for the year (36,064) (32,241)
Attributable to: BAT RELL
Equity shareholders of the RATE=RFFEA
Company (36,064) (32,241)
Non-controlling interests IR - -
Total comprehensive loss FALHEEAE
for the year (36,064) (32,241)
The notes on pages 44 to 131 form part of these financial FAABEFEN3 B2 W BRI S B @wE
statements. 285
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & M BN ML

As at 31 December 2013 i ~F—=4F 1 - H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
2013 2012
—EB—= —T—-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T TET FHT THT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets BE&E 13 1,118 1,383
Available-for-sale AENESREE
financial assets 15 2,450 1,370
3,568 2,753
Current assets REEE
Trading securities R B 16 339 523
Inventories 78 17 250,161 251,134
Trade and other receivables B % & AU ARIE 18 19,247 18,699
Cash and cash equivalents ~ IR&NIEEEHEY 19(a) 58,686 87,028
328,433 357,384
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HE e ERIE 20 19,147 20,724
Net current assets REEEFE 309,286 336,660
NET ASSETS BERE 312,854 339,413
Capital and reserves PR AR
Share capital IR 23(b) 131,582 131,682
Reserves @t 23(a) 181,272 207,831
Total equity attributable to ARQFEHRIZFEA
equity shareholders FEALRERR B3R
of the Company 312,854 339,413
Non-controlling interests  FEiRfR#EZS = -
TOTAL EQUITY mRER 312,854 339,413
The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 131 were HNEISEHEE 13N BEZBRAUBHRETIA
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 FEeR 2 —NEF_A -+ N \BHLEERE
February 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: RETEE - WHTINEEREREE

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Sim Eng

Director Director
EF EE

The notes on pages 44 to 131 form part of these financial

44 B R F131 B Z Wt S % mE

— %5

N

statements.

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7



Statement of Financial Position B #5IR L F&

As at 31 December 2013 3 ~FE—=4F4f - H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2013 2012
—E-=fF —E—_F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bisr TET FTHET FET TET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZIKE 14 7,813 1
Available-for-sale AL ESREE 15
financial assets 2,450 1,370
10,263 1,371
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables HHREMBEUERE 18 249,398 260,475
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 19(a) 2 4
249,400 260,479
Current liabilities RBaE
Trade and other payables B REMEMNEE 20 858 754
Net current assets RBEEFE 248,542 259,725
NET ASSETS EERE 258,805 261,096
Capital and reserves BRAR
Share capital RN 23(b) 131,582 131,582
Reserves i 23(a) 127,223 129,514
TOTAL EQUITY BER 258,805 261,096

HNFEIBEEF 13N BZGAMBRERTIA
BEeN_ET-—NE-_A-+N\BHERE
T WAHTIINEERERESR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 131 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
February 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Sim Eng

Director Director
EEa o

The notes on pages 44 to 131 form part of these financial A4 BEF 131 BEZMFEK IS BHE
aN

— &5
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42

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 55 & sz B #

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LA#TCHHE)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARERE ARILER
Reserves
fifi
Capital
redemp-  Share Fair Non-
Share  Share tion option  value Retained controlling  Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve  profits Sub-total  Total interests  equity
R BhE F2R
ke ROVEE RERE  REAVERS REEM 0 M S22 BE  ARR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000
Thr Thr TEx Thr TEr TEr TEr TEr  TEn TiEn
At 1 January 2012 R-E--F-F-H 131582 4785 121 - 3630 231536 240072 371,654 - 371,654
Changes in equity for 2012 —E-—EEHET
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (28611) (8611 (28611) - (28611)
Other comprehensive EREMZE
loss for the year B - - - - [3630) - (3630 (3630) - 3630)
Total comprehensive ERZE
loss for the year BEgE - - - - (38300 (8611) (32,241) (32,241) - (32.241)
At31 December 2012 e 2 131582 4785 121 - - 202,05 207831 339413 - 339413
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-F-H 131582 4,785 121 - - 202925 207,831 339413 - 339413
Changes in equity for 2013: —E-=FER%H
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (37044) (37,144) (37,44) - (37,144)
Other comprehensive EREMZE
income for the year Wi - - - - 1080 - 1080 1,080 - 1,080
Total comprehensive ERZE
loss for the year FREE - - - - 1,080 (37,144) (36,064) (36,064) - (36,064)
Fquitysettled share-based MR AEREZ
transactions BREERS - - - 950 - - 9505 9505 - 9505
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=5+ZfA=1-8 131582 4,785 121 9505 1,080 165781 181272 312,854 - 312,854
The notes on pages 44 to 131 from part of the financial FAABEF131 B2 MEEA I F I B HRE
statements. Z—HEB5 e

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows £S5 B iR B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAETCFHE)
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 FBT FA&T
Operating activities L
Cash used in operations KEFRAZIRE 19(b) (28,404) (34,306)
Tax paid =ENE
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBFEH - -
Net cash used in operating activities EEEKFRA RS EE (28,404) (34,306)
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABTEEE IR (22) (171)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets & BlE & EMME IR 2 4
Interest received BHFIE 82 480
Net cash generated from RETEFTESE
investing activities ZIEEFEE 62 313
Financing activities REEE
Repayment of bank loans BRIFITER = (181)
Interest paid BRFE - (3)
Net cash used in RMETBRFERAZES
financing activities FEE - (184)
Net decrease in cash and ReERREEEYZ
cash equivalents R FEE (28,342) (34,177)
Cash and cash equivalents at the RENzRERES
beginning of the year ZEY 87,028 121,205
Cash and cash equivalents attheend REXRZHRERRE
of the year ZEY 19(a) 58,686 87,028
The notes on pages 44 to 131 form part of these financial FALEEE 13 B2 W B ST HHRE
statements. 2 —#b5 e
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Note 1(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting years reflected in these financial

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 comprise the Company and

its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.

44 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- buildings (see note 1(f)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-
sale securities or as trading securities (see note
1(e)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are

relevant to the Group's financial statements:

° Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements — Presentation of items of

other comprehensive income

° HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

° HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other

entities

° HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

° Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures —

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has not applied any new standards or
interpretations that are not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

<)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
Impacts of the adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present
separately the items of other comprehensive income
that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the
future if certain conditions are met from those that
would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The
presentation of other comprehensive income in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in these financial statements
has been modified accordingly. In addition, the Group
has chosen to use the new titles “statement of
profit or loss” and “statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income” as introduced by the

amendments in these financial statements.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
purpose entities. It introduces a single control
model to determine whether an investee should be
consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has
power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the
ability to use its power to affect the amount of those

returns.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

<)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
(continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee.
The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
involvement with its investees as at 1 January 2013.

However, under HKFRS 10, the directors of the
Company consider that the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Hong
Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC Cayman”), which is
incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability,
and Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC Singapore”),
which is incorporated with limited liability and listed in
the Republic of Singapore, respectively. This resulted
in the changes in the identity of certain related parties
and corresponding notes to financial statements. As
at 31 December 2012, the directors of the Company
identified Hong Fok Land International Limited (“HFL")
as a substantial shareholder of the Company and its
subsidiaries as related parties. Upon the adoption
of HKFRS 10, both of the Company and HFL are
considered to be the subsidiaries of HFC Singapore
and HFL and its subsidiaries are then the fellow
subsidiaries of the Company. There are consequential
changes in note 18 “Trade and other receivables”
and note 27 “Material related party transactions”
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2012. As
previously reported, the amount due from the HFL's
subsidiary was represented as “Amount due from a
related company” and now is “Amount due from a
fellow subsidiary”. Management fee income received
from the HFL's subsidiary was previously reported as
transaction with related company and now is reported
as transaction with fellow subsidiary.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

<)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
(continued)

This change in accounting policy did not have a
material impact on these financial statements.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard
all the disclosure requirements relevant to an
entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally
more extensive than those previously required by
the respective standards. The adoption of HKFRS 12
does not have any material impact on these financial

statements.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value
measurement guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and
non-financial instruments. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group
has provided those disclosures in notes 13 and 24.
The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material
impact on the fair value measurements of the Group's
assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

<)

d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures - Offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in
respect of offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. Those new disclosures are required for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Presentation and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments
and transactions, irrespective of whether the financial

instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an
impact on these financial statements because the
Group has not offset financial instruments, nor has
it entered into master netting arrangement or similar
agreement which is subject to the disclosures of
HKFRS 7 during the periods presented.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights

(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s

net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the

equity shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 1(e)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly

controlled entity .

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(h)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in

a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company’'s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their

classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investments as these are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out in note 1(qg)(iv)
and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(h)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(h)). Dividend income
from these investments is recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(g)(iv)
and, where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(g)(v). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see note 1(h)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

f)

Other property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see
note 1(g)) are stated at their revalued amount, being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of reporting

period.

The other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 1(h)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in property revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to

the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

1.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

HEAEHBOR (8

FefbYy 3k - W3 B it A

EEEHELHHEE R ZET
(ZBFZRAFEANERORS
REBEE LTIz A FESHE
(RMFE1g)) DREEHSR
(MERER[B#Z A FERE
RERTEITE) FIBR -

EfgSAR - RAERRBTY
T BRZFEEZRAER
RIBEMRRARFEEEZE
B EEXRE

ME - BEREEZHMAER R
AR 2B E KR ER B B
(RBEIFE1(h) »

AEFFIFERMEELEZE
—REHMEAWEANEE - I
R EREGERBERTNE LR
it e BERISMERIAT -

- MELEGEM 238
ERaEXANG BEEB
HREZBHAAERE
ENHEBEAREZSER
1k R

- MWELEGREHK Z2BHE
FRABER - WABRE—
BEEXANCREBERRA
X BfHEARRETE -

Annual Report 2013 —F—Z=4E4ER

55



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
f)  Other property, plant and equipment (continued) ML ~ B Bt il (A1)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing

costs (see note 1(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the property revaluation reserve to retained

profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,

less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
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straight-line method over their estimated useful lives (IhB) AETEIE -
as follows:
- Leasehold land classified as held under finance - SDERRBEMHEREBEZ
leases is depreciated over the term of lease. E LR HEBRTES
Z o

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives of

40 years.

- Furniture, equipment and other fixed assets are

depreciated over 5 years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

f)

2

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

- property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property is classified
as investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

(CONTINUED)
g)  Leased assets (continued)
(continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.

ii)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment

property or is held for development for sale (see

note 1(i)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)  Impairment of assets

0

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
h)  Impairment of assets (continued) h) WA (8T
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity i) EBERIRAGE N %
securities and other receivables (continued) BB A AR I 2 o (E
(%)

EFHEETMERERE A
BATHAEE MERE

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 1(h)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with
note 1(h)(ii).

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
h)  Impairment of assets (continued) h)  REAME (D)
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity 1) FEETE R IR 75 5 14 2 7
securities and other receivables (continued) BB Al AR 2 e (E
(#F)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’'s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

AHRERAERE - &
EERBERD - M
BRIR A A B
ERERBERRRE
EREMIE - AR
EBREEBRER
M - R (EEEED
TEEMEERES
HBHETENEFE
AR EERZ
B

19

AR HHEESFM
ERAFERE
R RFTEBREE
EFOBREEER -
RERRER 25t
EREERWBRA
OB EFERAZIER
KEEH) ERITRF
BZER  RELER
PARTEZ B ERNRmR
PERHBEEE

=n|

7

B o

A B R AR E
MEBBRIE N ES
RATER - BT EE
BEREARED - AR
ZEERVFEZER
EMERE M2 EK
PR o

Annual Report 2013 —F—Z=4E4ER

61



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #% & — =4 _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICA]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEAEHBOR (5
(CONTINUED)
h)  Impairment of assets (continued) h) AW (D)
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity i) REHERIRARZE SN
securities and other receivables (continued) BB A B AR I 2 o (E
(#F)

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that the property, plant
and equipment (other than properties carried
at revalued amounts) may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

1.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICi]{H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =44 _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.

64 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

1.

EEEEralBOR (50

h)

YR WA (1)
Al & ()

1)

R R E RS

BEEELEMBN
PRER 2 B O BRE
TRBAHEAWKE S
B enRBaid
FERBEERE - LR
R & B R
BEER ankETR
Ee 53R 3% B AL (3K
—HBEM)PEEN
FREeEE - EEE
ERAETZRIE
BERERGHRFE
R 88 B (5 BE AT
Bt AEECEE

EE) -

)3 (B

PR S B AT R M 1
bR
% HWREERS
FRE -

B EZBEERIAE
FEFE W ARTERRIE
EREMECEEZE
ERATRE/R - B
Bl 2 BB 18 T FE
RO 2 FEAFA
BER -



1.

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
i) Inventories
i) Horticultural services

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the standard cost basis
(which approximates the average actual cost)
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =44 _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i)

Inventories (continued)

ii)

Property development

Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost and net realisable values
are determined as follows:

Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing cost capitalised
(see note 1(s)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and costs to
be incurred in selling the property.

Completed property held for sale

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

»

k)

)

m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(h)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest

method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(p)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =44 _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
n) Employee benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share option
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date using the binomial option pricing
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

n)

0)

Employee benefits (continued)

ii)

iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to
not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company's shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =44 _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they

will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

Pife B (&)

BRECHEEERBBEZER
PISMER BT : EXBTRESR
PR ER N (B XK S IR
—WORRIN) 2EEHBEZ
MNTHER 2 ERFER - ARRH
BRARZRECEREZR M5
ERHER - ARV EEEES
EEEHEMNEERBRAREKIK
AREEEZ ZR  HINER T
WMEZER - AIRRNE A KA E
BOMER -

FrEERIEIER A 2 & 8 JIARIB 4
BEMABZEREEZERER
FHEEZTA BRBEHR
DAEMSER DA BT
8o REMBEEENMBENEN

i35
AR ©

BELERABEEZRMEEN SR
SFHIR T AL - ETBAIBEE
R SE RN AE R AR
B - AIREAEERE
B BWTT8EH &M ERDUE
A OB BEE o

Annual Report 2013 & —Z4F4E# 71



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =44 _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0) Income tax (continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BREEFHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent p) M EYER - M RSk
liabilities £
i) Financial guarantees issued i) P BB ER

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e., the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms

of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not
been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =44 _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

0

i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(p)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee, that is, the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

i) Sale of properties

When properties under development are
sold, income is recognised when the property
development is completed with the relevant
occupation permit issued by the Authorities
and the significant risks and rewards of the
ownership of the properties are passed to the
buyers. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are recorded as forward sales
deposits and instalments received.

ii)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

iii)  Service income
Service income is recognised when the relevant

services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =44 _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q)

Revenue recognition (continued)

iv)

vi)

vii)

Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right

to receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the

investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in

which they are earned.

Management fee income
Management fee income is recognised at the
time when the services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in

equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =44 _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

s)

)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies (continued):

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either

the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #;% & — =4 _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU Tt E)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

u)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated

if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICq]H)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 24 contain information about the assumptions and their

risk factors relating to valuation of financial instruments.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

a)

b)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant

changes from previous estimates.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2013 was HK$1,118,000 (2012:
HK$1,383,000).

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
the estimated selling price less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. In addition, the management
performs an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and assesses

the need for write down of inventories.

The carrying amount of inventories as at 31 December
2013 was HK$250,161,000 (2012: HK$251,134,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =44 _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

¢

d)

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer. Any increase or decrease in the
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts would
affect profit or loss in future years.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables
as at 31 December 2013 was HK$19,247,000 (2012:
HK$18,699,000).

Current taxation and deferred taxation

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The management evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilized, the
management’'s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2013, no
provisions for current tax and deferred tax were made
(2012: HK$Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

e

Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share options granted is estimated
using the binomial option pricing model at the date of
grant by an independent valuer. The model requires
input of assumptions such as expected stock price
volatility and dividend yield. Changes in the input may
materially affect the fair value estimates. Details of
assumptions and estimates used are set out in note
21.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, equity-settled
share-based payments expenses was approximately
HK$9,505,000 (2012: HK$ Nil).

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are property

development, property management, property construction,

provision of horticultural services and securities trading.

Turnover represents revenue from provision of property

management and horticultural services. No properties

were sold during the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012. The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

KAl BoA i (4)

Pt A2 K 2 2RO (4

e) ERHBREEZME
EREBAE 2 AP EHBILG
ERREEASER B EE
BAFE - B TIF IR -
TR A 2 BR B R 1R K i B AR o
R ZEE A e At 2 A
EBKREATE - TARKEMA
FHRHBEN MR 21 -

REE-_T—=F+_A=+—
BIEFEE AR AERAOERS
#E 3 X 449,505,000 %

TT(ZE——F . TFT) »

e

AEEZEIBXBRMFRER WX
B MERE RHEEZRBEE

EEEETEREVESERERE
ERB W REE-_T——FK
—E-ZF+-AZt+—RALFEHR
BHEME - FAREEBERZE
BRKALER 2 SBEHT

2013 2012

—E—=4F —E—_F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FBT FAT

Revenue from provision of property KERHYMEEERG 2 Was 429 413
management services

Revenue from provision of RERPERE AR < W 4,451 4,216

horticultural services
4,880 4,629
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

4. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 4. oAbt R IABBOA, O
INCOME/(LOSS) E ]
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
Other revenue Hinlhs
Interest income on financial assets not SER A ERAERER
at fair value through profit or loss BRVEE 2 M BEWA
— Interest income from banks —RERITHEWA 82 451
Management fee income (note 27(c)(i) EEBWA (FFFE270)0) 2,802 2,367
Rental income from operating leases LERHOBE WA 3,386 544
Dividend income from listed securities EEHEREWA 18 -
Others HAtb 49 314
6,337 3,676
Other net income/(loss) Hplw A/ (E518) 7$58
Gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEE W (BE) 1 (3)
Revaluation losses on buildings EFEHER (35) (24)
Available-for-sale financial assets: ARHESREE -
reclassified from equity BEREN D
- on impairment —RE - (1,800)
Write-back of provision RN AT
for construction costs e 1,505 1,452
1,471 (375)
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

5. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBLWIEH
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRELRISEE MR ¢
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(a) Finance costs (a) AERA
Total interest expense on LN FEFAEBRZ
financial liabilities not at fair CRIBENSMY
value through profit or loss: 4BEE -
— Interest on bank borrowings — BN AT B
wholly repayable within BB 2 R1T
five years BHEFE - 3

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) &I KA

emoluments) (BREEEHS)
Contributions to defined contribution FERIRET IR
retirement plan (note 11) (FET1) 336 284
Equity-settled share-based LA REME 2 ERER
payment expenses (note 21) ERBAs (FsE21) 9,505 -
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 25,675 20,592
35,516 20,876
(¢c) Otheritems (c) HfbEB
Amortisation of land lease premium ME T & RS 22 22
Depreciation of property, plant and VI R &
equipment HETE 229 437
Auditors’ remuneration 2 Gllllen
— audit services — B %R 440 420
— other services — EAthfR 60 60
Operating lease charges: EEMROAL -
minimum lease payments . EMELAR
— hire of plant and machinery — AR ks - 1
— land and building — Lt RIEF 4,839 4,001
Cost of inventories (note 17) TFERA (ME17) 891 900
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

6. INCOME TAX 6. Pififi
a)  Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss a)  EAEHARNZBIHE
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and BEEREREBELZHERE
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to HE  AEEEABANZSER
any income tax in these jurisdictions. ERFAER
No Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31 AR EERMREFERNERS
December 2013 and 2012 has been provided for as the WAL ET E SRR T - AR AR E
Group has no estimated assessable profits arising in HEEZE—T—=FR-_F—=-F
Hong Kong for both years. TZA=tT—BLEFEZEEF
1SHIAE o
b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss b) R R B A S B B S B
at the applicable tax rates: 1wl BB R
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FA&T
Loss before taxation PRI AIER (37,144) (28,611)
Notional tax on loss before BRTIATET R 2 &R BIIE -
taxation, calculated at the rates LB AERERER
applicable to losses in the REBBZHEFE
jurisdictions concerned (6,129) (4,721)
Tax effect of non-deductible TR IR B R 2 B
expenses Fa 2,020 817
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERTMAZ BT E (18) (74)
Tax effect of unused tax losses KR ARARIBEGE
not recognised ZRiER 2 4,155 4,045
Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses ~ ANFEEFFBEFE 2 FHIE
utilised this year B B2 (28) (2)
Others HAtb - (65)
Actual tax expense BEEMIARAX - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

o
RIEEEATEHIE 161 GREZES

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7.

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 161 of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

Bl -

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme based 2013
fee in kind bonuses contributions  payments Total
e 28 Wk#hR  =%F-=
20 REMAE BEFA  BAGHEIMS  ERNAR fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn B TET TET TET TiEn
Executive directors: HIES:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, Eg
Chief Executive e - 2,653 1,200 31 1567 5,451
Cheong Kim Pong ks - - - - - -
(resigned on (R-E-=
18 November 2013) T-A+N\RER)
Cheong Sim Eng BYR - 4 1,200 5 1567 2,776
Cheong Hooi Kheng EEH - 1,148 - 15 1,567 2,730
Independent non-executive BUIHRITES
directors:
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert RIAE 150 - - - 42 192
Leung Wing Ning 2xE 150 - - - 42 192
Kwik Sam Ak B4 150 - - - 42 192
450 3,805 2,400 51 4,827 11,533
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors" and benefits Discretionary scheme based 2012
fee in kind bonuses contributions  payments Total
e 28 Wkthes  —EF-2f
EZhe LB BEEL  BAGHEMS  ERNAR fi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEn T TiEn Ti#n TiEn
Executive directors: HIES
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, FETHE
Chief Executive e - 2,810 100 - - 2,910
Cheong Kim Pong B - - 100 - - 100
Cheong Sim Eng BY5R - - 100 - - 100
Cheong Hooi Kheng EE - 1143 - 14 - 1,157
Independent non-executive BUIERITES
directors:
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert B 140 - - - - 140
Leung Wing Ning 2xE 140 - - - - 140
Kwik Sam Ak I=% 140 - - - - 140
420 3,953 300 14 - 4,687
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors of
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office. There was
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.

As at 31 December 2013, the directors held share options
under the Company’s share options scheme. The details of
the share options are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
Option Scheme 2013" in the Directors’ Report and note 21.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2012: one) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in

note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

o 4 (F)

REE-T—=FRk=-F——F+=A
=+—BLEFE AEEHERAR
AU E B AT E ARSI S B A
REIRERMABK ZE KBREE -
REE-T—=FR=-F——F+=A
=T —HIEFE  BETURHEREE
EREXRERETAME -

R-ZZE—=F+=-A=+H EHE
RNATIRERMERTEIT 2 AR - AR
ZHBEREFERE 2 ZE—=F8
ReAErt Bl ] —ERR RMIEE21 i -

I A L

AEEESHFHALH  —H(ZT—=
F:—RB)BES  HFMRMHE7S
W HWE(ZE—=—F: UH)

other four (2012: four) individuals are as follows: ATz HemEmT
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Salaries and other emoluments e R E A Fr 11,528 9,858
Discretionary bonuses BOIEFEAL 800 427
Share-based payments AR 1 B ERET 3R 3,335 -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIBER 59 55
15,722 10,340
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 8.

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The emoluments of the four (2012: four) individuals with the

I i 0 A L (380)

ME(ZFE——F: MZ)&XFHHMA

highest emoluments are within the following bands: T2 FHMELTEER
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_4F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE N
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 &7 £ 2,000,000/8 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T £ 2,500,000 87T - -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 2 3,000,000 77T - 2
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 77T 2 3,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 77T 2 4,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T = 4,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 77T 2 5,000,000 7T 1 -
4 4

There was no amount paid during the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012 to the five highest paid
employees as inducement to join or upon joining the Group

or as compensation for loss of office.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 9.

TEZFERFE—-F+=

T-HILFE BER=FHHE

MEBEAREBHAE R IMAL K R R
BE -

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of HK$12,876,000 (2012:
HK$4,405,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

R 2 ) R S R AT A A s 48

ARAlERFEARLGAEEESR
BERARAIBBREFAEREZ
12,876,000 L2 FE(ZE——4F :

4,405,000/ 70) °
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10. LOSS PER SHARE

a)  Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$37,144,000 (2012: HK$28,611,000)
and the weighted average number of approximately
2,631,652,000 (2012: 2,631,652,000) ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

b)  Diluted loss per share
The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2013 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options
as the exercise of the share options would result in a
decrease in loss per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, diluted loss
per share is the same as basic loss per share as the
Company does not have dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

11. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June 2012). Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

10. B #H

EVIE =3 2% N |
BREREBBDREFRAARAR]
% B fE 15 E5 18 37,144,000 74 7T
(ZZ——4 :28,611,00077T)
KB BT E R 2 MEFHEL
2,631,652,000 & (=T —=F :
2,631,652,000 f%) 5T & -

b) I HE R
FEHE_Z—=F+_FH
=t+-HILEFESREEEET
THEERRBITERRRMKRITE
ZHEARHE - LTy ERATT I BRI
AEgREERD -

BREZ-_ZT -+ A
=T—BUEFERARNWERLS
BUHEEETE 2 TRR - MER
BB B EgREREEER -

11, H K08 dht 3

REBRBEES MG RE DT EE
PIEHRESERGHEESEENER
ZEEHTAREATESE([8E
SEr 8l BESFEABEB LT
ABEBZ RERFRIKE S - RIFR
Beirdl  BEREESBHAKEER
BREAWAZE% MZaTEER - EGA
B A LR A25,0008T(R_F
— /X AB1/A20,000/87T) ° ZatE
2T BN R o



Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥

12. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines (products and services).
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following four
reportable segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

- Property development: this segment develops and

sells the Group's residential properties.

- Horticultural services: this segment provides
horticultural services.

- Property management and other related services:
this segment mainly provides building management

services.

- Securities trading: this segment engages in the trading

of securities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Company’s executive directors monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible and current assets
with the exception of available-for-sale financial assets,
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade creditors, accruals
and other payables attributable to the sales activities
of the individual segments managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA" i.e., "adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where
“interest” is regarded as including investment income
and "depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as
including impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the Group’s earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as directors’ and auditor’s
remuneration and other corporate administration
costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management is provided
with segment information concerning revenue
(including inter segment sales), interest income from
cash balances managed directly by the segments,
depreciation and amortisation, material non-cash items
and additions to non-current segment assets used by
the segments in their operations. Inter-segment sales
are priced with reference to prices charged to external
parties for similar orders.
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12. 2% (480

a)
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

12. 23 ()

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) a) ML GE R AR (E)
Information regarding the Group's reportable REBE_T—=FK=FT—=F
segments as provided to the Company’s executive +ZA=+—BLEFEZERS
directors for the purposes of resource allocation and B fe APl D FE R IR M AR A R EAT
assessment of segment performance for the years EEREBEAEERE I EZ
end 31 December 2013 and 2012 is set out below. BEREHR T o
Property management
Property Horticultural and other Securities
development services related srvices trading Total
VS R UEEERENIRERE 5 it
2013 2012 2013 012 2013 012 2013 012 013 2012
8-k _5-f Z%-zF _E-f ZF-zF 5 -f ZF-zF 5 -F ZFZF 5
HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tar  TEr 0 TR TAm TEm TAr TR TR TR TEn
Revenug from extemal customers - REFIIER 2 Mg - - 4451 4216 09 413 - - 4880 4629
Intersegment revenue AERME - - 4 19 108 112 - - 14 161
Reportable segment revenue = EAE - - 4,491 4,265 537 525 - - 5,08 479
Reportable segment (loss)/profit 578 (§2) /A
(adjusted EBITDA) (T2 ERITDA) 29.207) 22,004) 623 43 521 510 (181) 37 (28.244) (21,041)
Reportable segment assets ~ HEHEER 6315 266041 1542 98 807 58 352 B3 29016 26813
Reportable segment iabiities ~ F=7EEE 1749 19128 249 30 ] 18 pij 70 me 1953

For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue of
approximately HK$670,000 was derived from a single
external customer who contributed more than 10%
of total revenue of the Group. This revenue was

attributable to the horticultural services segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue of
approximately HK$1,070,000 was derived from a
single external customer who contributed more than
10% of total revenue of the Group. This revenue was
attributable to the horticultural services segment.

BHEZZT—=F+=ZA=1+—
HIEFE  BE—HINEFPE
A W #1670,00008 7T - &
FHERBBRAERBKEZ
10% ° Z W ERBREBRS D
5o

HE—ZS——H#+-A=+—
HIEFE B8RP E
A IR 25 491,070,000 JT © #%
EPMERBRANE BB
Z10% ° iz =B BEERS
D¥E -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. A% ()
b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or b) W& BB - BRASER - B
loss, assets and liabilities 7 R A 2 ik
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Revenue e
Reportable segment revenue WwE DB 5,028 4,790
Elimination of inter-segment D TR
revenue (148) (161)
Consolidated turnover e 4,880 4,629
Profit or loss B
Reportable segment loss WESTEEER (28,244) (21,041)
Elimination of inter-segment D LR
profit (148) (161)
Reportable segment loss REREBEEIINEF 2
derived from the Group's external R0 fAEE
customers (28,392) (21,202)
Other revenue and net income HAb s R AF R 2,917 1,305
Depreciation and amortisation T Ko 8 (251) (459)
Finance costs BhE A - (3)
Unallocated corporate expenses RPBEARZH (11,418) (8,252)
Consolidated loss before taxation MR RIAR S 1R (37,144) (28,611)
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. 2% ()

b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or b)  WHABIKE - RAER - %
loss, assets and liabilities (continued
( ) e B B2 B (B0
2013 2012
—=—=F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets WmEDBEE 269,016 268,136
Available-for-sale financial assets AHNESRERE 2,450 1,370
Unallocated corporate assets ROMARIEE
— cash and cash equivalents -REeERBSEEY 56,564 86,465
— other assets - EmEE 3,971 4,166
Consolidated total assets fre BEAE 332,001 360,137
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities mENEAE 17,797 19,533
Unallocated corporate liabilities KoL ARIAE 1,350 1,197
Consolidated total liabilities IREBERE 19,147 20,724
c¢) Other segment information ¢ HpbaREFR
Property
Property Horticultural management and other Securities
development services related services trading Unallocated Total
EEE BERE EEERANEBRY ELu #AE &
21 012 2013 0m 201 012 213 0 2013 0m 213 m
Z§-ZE 37§ I3-ZF TR SRR CR-Tf CESE CRE TRZE CRTE SRtk TRtk
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000  HKSO00  HKSO00
tén TEn TR T TR TR TER  TAr TR TR T TEn
Interest income: 15 12 - - - - - - 67 439 8 41
Interest expense - - - - - - - - {3 - §]
Depreciation and amortisation - {3 4] m i} (231 37 (251) 459)
Income tax expense - - - - - - - -
Equity-settled share-based
payment expense (6,628) - (32) - - - (2.845) (9,505) -
Addtions to non-current
segment assets during
the year - - - - - - - - 2 m 0 m
d)  Geographic information d) bR

No geographic information is shown as all the Group's
revenue and results of operations are derived from and
all the Group's assets are located in Hong Kong.

AR SR B o T R R AR A 2R
BEEERAAKEEEHBUNE
B Rt E2SEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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13. FIXED ASSETS 13. Al ¥
The Group A4
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own Buildings Furniture,
use under held forown equipment Total
finance use carried and other fixed
leases at fair value fixed assets assets
RRIERE
HAFER BAFE EW - RE
AEE LT SIERZ REM EEEE
2R BHEERET EEEE “HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHBT FET FHET
Cost or valuation: RESGE :
At 1 January 2012 R-E——F—HF—H 970 230 5,149 6,349
Additions NE - - 171 171
Disposals HE - - (58) (58)
Deficit on revaluation EiAEAL - (24) - (24)
Less: elimination of B BIEE
accumulated
depreciation - 6) - (6)
At 31 December 2012 RZE—=F
t=A=+—8 970 . 200 . 5262 ______. 6432 __
Representing: HER
Cost RE 970 - 5,262 6,232
Valuation — 2012 HE-——T—ZF - 200 - 200
970 200 5,262 6,432
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—H—H 970 200 5,262 6,432
Additions NE - - 22 22
Disposals HE - - (34) (34)
Deficit on revaluation SihEA - (35) - (35)
Less: elimination of W BEITE L
accumulated
depreciation - (5) - (5)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
t=A=t+-8 970 . 60 . 5250 . 6,380 _
Representing: HER :
Cost R1E 970 - 5,250 6,220
Valuation - 2013 HE-——T—=F - 160 - 160
970 160 5,250 6,380




Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. Bl ¥ (4)
The Group (continued) AR (47)
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own Buildings Furniture,
use under held for own equipment Total
finance use carried and other fixed
leases at fair value fixed assets assets
RIRERE
HAOHER UAFEE & BE
ARE T SR 2 REA EEEE
2w BEBAET BEEEE “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FET FExT
Accumulated amortisation EFHBERITE ¢
and depreciation:
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—H—H 196 - 4,451 4,647
Charge for the year RFFEZH 22 6 431 459
Written back on disposals HEEREE - - (51) (51)
Elimination on revaluation EhRE - 6) - (6)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——F
+=A=+-8 218 - 483 5,049 _
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=F—HF—H 218 - 4,831 5,049
Charge for the year RFEZH 22 5 224 251
Written back on disposals HEEREE - - (33) (33)
Elimination on revaluation ShRE - (5) = (5)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+t=A=+-8 240 — 5022 5262 _
Carrying amount: BREFE -
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+-A=+—8 730 160 228 1,118
At 31 December 2012 RZIZE——F
+ZA=+—8 752 200 431 1,383
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. Bl ¥ (4)

a)  Revaluation of buildings held for own use (continued) a)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, buildings were
revalued based on depreciated replacement cost by an
independent valuer. The following table analyses the

buildings carried at fair value, by valuation methods.

Fair value hierarchy

Fifie AR Z LAY (B0

RZE—=FR-F——F+=
B=+—8 BFREH—E8
SRERMZ T EEBERAEETT
EFEHE - TEROMBEBGHEE
RATFEINEZET -

ATEZH

Fair value measurements as at

31 December 2013 using
R-EB-=F+-A=+—HAFALTEHE

Quoted prices
in active
markets for
identical assets

Significant
other Significant
observable unobservable
inputs  inputs (Note)

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
AHRIEE HihEXR BEART
WERBmE AER N PN
®E B HIE 205 (Mf=E)
FE1R F28 E3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT THET THAT
Recurring fair KEMENF
value measurement EitE
Buildings held for BFEBREE:
own use:
—In Hong Kong -B% - - 160

Note: For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the assets
is not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were
no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3. The Group's
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

a)

Revaluation of buildings held for own use (continued)

Movements during the year in the balance of these

Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

13, BEIEEE (&)
Fife AR Z AN ()

FAZEEIRATET BES
SHUT

Buildings held for
own use in Hong Kong

KEERET-B8

HK$'000

FiEx

At 1 January 2013 R-_ZT—=F—HF—H 200
Depreciation charge for FENEER

the year (5)

Deficit on revaluation EHEA (35)

At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H 160

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s buildings were revalued at 31 December 2013
and 2012 by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, who is an independent firm of chartered surveyors
and has among its staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. For the buildings,
their current use equates to the highest and best use.

The Group's finance department considers and discusses
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes, including all key inputs to
the valuations and property valuations movements as
compared to the prior year.

Valuation techniques

The valuation was determined based on the depreciated
replacement cost with reference to the current cost
of replacing an asset with its modern equivalent asset
less deductions for all physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and optimization
based on significant unobservable inputs. These inputs
include:

REELERRE

AEERBFR_ZT—=FK=F
——H+ZA=t+—BHBiIH
ERE - R FRAEHHEREE
BHEBERAR - ER—EEFA
EMZBIY AR RE BRI EE
REXE  REEMEZELR
PRITHABLR - BETME
HBERBER SRS RKEER -

AR E TS B E RS E B
B B S (B 0 L 5T 2 A
Rl - BB ER S
AL BRABERRYE I ESR
EERHR TR -

R ERM
HEL2ZEE-—RHEEZ AR
RZEEEEEREEZBAIX
A ORERBRRAARBET R
ZRERBI(ERERTA#H
RPABB) ERNTEEERA
BE - 2FTHAREERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

a)

Revaluation of buildings held for own use (continued)
Valuation techniques (continued)

Cost of construction

Cost per square feet to completion was estimated
based on the gross floor area using direct market
comparables and taking into account of life and size of
property and its facilities as at 31 December 2013.

Estimated depreciation

Deducting all sources of depreciation by straightline
method over the useful life, including physical
deterioration and functional and economic
obsolescence and adjusting by the physical condition
of the building.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

13. [l s ¥ (1)

a)

Fife AL Z AN ()

fhER T ()

BB

HEMER-_Z—=F+=A8
—t-BEMRRERRERER
MG LB ITNEL K AMERE
ARt O 12 P 4 B e AR 1 A AY

HEE

AT ERBERESETER
R FHATRRRIRHITE -
BIEEABRMIN A RAHE
MR - WIRBF BB MIE

FRMBERMLEZS -

FELATEFEREAERTT
BEGABE (B3R 2EH

Valuation Unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Description technique input inputs to fair value
FUBRZHARE
it fhER G TaBRBARE HATENBR
Buildings Based on depreciated Cost of construction of The higher the estimated cost per
replacement cost HK$855 per square feet to completion, the
square feet higher the fair value
BT ERFESERAK BRAARETAR B RRERKABS -
7EH5 855 7T AYESS
Estimated depreciation over  The higher the estimated
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the useful life of 50 years
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depreciation, the lower the
fair value
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

13.

The revaluation deficit of HK$35,000 (2012: HK$24,000) has

been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

Had these buildings held for own use been carried at cost

less accumulated depreciation, the carrying amounts would
have been HK$443,000 (2012: HK$463,000).

b)  The analysis of carrying amount of properties is as

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

Il ¥ (41)

E A AL35,0008 (2 ——F
24,000870) ERERABRERER °

WMz EFHEE BEFRAAREIT
ERE - HBREE A443,00008 7T
—ZT——1F : 463,00087T) °

b) Wyl S B E

follows:
2013 2012
—E-—=F T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiExT FAET
In Hong Kong R EE
— medium-term leases —h A E 890 952
Representing: HER
Interests in leasehold land IR B RV E A FHE
held for own use under ARSI S
finance leases 730 752
Buildings held for own use AR THES IR 2 FFE
carried at fair value BRETF 160 200
890 952
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. RHBA R 2 B
The Company
PN
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Unlisted shares, at cost REMRD - JRE 1 1
Capital contribution in respect of BLLARRAD R ERE 2
equity-settled share-based payment BEENFRFIEERE R 7,812 -
7,813 1
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TERERBEFIEZEAREEEE &
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of EXBEIZHWBATZEE -
the Group.
Proportion of ownership
interests held by
the Company
AR ARSI
Place of Particulars
incorporation  of issued and
Name of company and operation  paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activity
AL ERIRAR
NRER RS RARGEE B# B IEEH
Winfoong Assets Limited British Virgin -~ 100 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment Holding
Islands US$1 each REER

HERLHEE  SREGE1ETZ100REEK

Century Elegant Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100% Provision of property
ENBRAR BE HK$1 management services
TREE 1T BRIk RENXERRYE

Cheung Kee Garden Limited  Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 - 100% Investment holding and
R LEBRAA G each and 450,000 provision of

non-voting deferred shares horticultural services

of HK$1 each REBR KRG

100 REBRERE AT EE RS

Z 3B )2 450,000 &

FREE1ETL

ERZEELTR
Donwin Property Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of - 100% Property holding
RREXBRAA 5 HK$1 each ESSE]

2RERmE 1 B TRK
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. JAHE A w2 B ¥ (8)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership
interests held by
the Company
KRR EE RS
Place of Particulars
incorporation  of issued and
Name of company and operation paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activity
TR ERIRAR
NRER BRI RAGFE HE B  IBER
Fort Property Management ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of - 100% Provision of
Limited Bk HK$1 each management services
BRNEERERAF 2REREE BT BER REEERY
Sui Chong Finance Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of - 100% Provision of financing and
Limited B% HK$10 each management services
HENBARLF 2B EREBE 0BT L BR and trading of securities
RURMERERRSE
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of - 100% Property holding
(H.K) Limited E% HK$10 each NERE
HEER(EA)BRAA 2R EREBE 0BT L BR
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100% Provision of property
Resources Limited BA of HK$1 each management and project
hEERERERAR 1,000 B REE 1T management services
LBk REMEEER
EEEERG
Super Homes Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each - 100% Property development
5 and 100 non-voting deferred NEER
shares of HK$0.3 each
100k EREE1ETL

LRRE 00 REREE
03B ERFEETR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 15. Wk £ Ak Al
ASSETS
The Group and the Company
REERALAT
2013 2012
—E-=F —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHIT
Unlisted debt securities BAFERLED
at fair value EI5ES 2,450 1,370
16. TRADING SECURITIES 16. 5%
The Group
EE
2013 2012
—E-=fF —EF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Listed equity securities at fair value EmRARES (RATE)
—in Hong Kong —&E 339 373
Unlisted equity securities at fair value FEETRAZ S (BATFE) - 150
339 523
17. INVENTORIES 17. #1K
The Group
EE
2013 2012
—E-=F g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET
Horticultural plants REEY 356 303
Completed properties held for sale BIEMERIME 249,805 250,831
250,161 251,134
The completed properties held for sale are held in Hong REHERTIMECREARHAE
Kong under long-term leases. THA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥

17. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

17. 475 ()
Wit 7y W3 AF ARG UM BT A E

Horticultural plants

EEEY
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEr FHT
Cost of inventories sold EEFEZHRA 891 900
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B 5y B J il M M B
The Group The Company
rEE AUNG
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE—=f —E—CF —E-=f “T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THET FET THET TEL
Amount due from a B —FRI B AR
subsidiary 0 - - 249,027 260,103
Amount due from a fellow JEW —FREE A ]
subsidiary (note 27(b)) A (3L 27(0)) 682 673 = -
Trade debtors B E SR
(note (a)) (Fi3E (@) 911 644 = -
Receivables for monies ERRIEEENE
held by the solicitor HEHE
in accordance with the B IR
relevant property sale BB
agreements 13,981 13,966 - -
Other debtors Hit e iR1E 815 734 = -
Loans and receivables BERREKERE 16,389 16,017 249,027 260,103
Rental and other deposits HekEfke 1,909 1,918 = -
Prepayments BITHIE 949 764 371 372
19,247 18,699 249,398 260,475

W —FHMNBAR R —EEEMER
AlzpBELEAR RSBEEEEE
TH o

The amounts due from a subsidiary and a fellow subsidiary
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

BB S REMEWERE - AR
—F R E K ER R o

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. BB K U A RO ()
(CONTINUED)
a)  Ageing analysis a)  JRER B
Included in trade and other receivables are trade RE S RAMEWIRIEA - UK
debtors with the following ageing analysis based on oM EARBEZAMNRE
the invoice date, as of the end of the reporting period : AR ZBRE DT ¢
The Group
rEH
2013 2012
—B=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Within 1 month —fEAAT 577 488
After 1 month but within 3 months —Z=1{#A 323 149
Over 3 months BA=EA 11 7
911 644
The Group's credit policy is set out in note 24(a). REB 2 EERIEIHNWF
24(a) °
b)  Impairment of trade debtors b) MR BRI Z WA
During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, BE_T—=ZFp=-_F—=
there was no impairment loss made against trade TZA=FT—HLEFE WEE
debtors. EREIE 5 ERIEFEEIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

<)

Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of the trade debtors that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

18. B 5 B 30l M B X (480)

AT WA 2 HEWC R BRI
1E B e A RIRR R TR B 2 & W
BHRBZREDHTIAT ¢

The Group
rEE

2013 2012

—E—=F —ET—=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FA&T

Not past due R Hp 577 488
Less than 1 month past due BaE R —EA 281 ------------ 109

More than 1 month past due BN —EA 53 47
BN 156

911 644

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances are still considered fully recoverable.

BEARE TR AR B 2 FEU R TR T
BRETHERYEERCHZE
5o

B EHE R TR E < & W BR TR D
BRETEAEEAR R IFEEAR
BZBUEP o ERAERLR -
ERERR BREEERLE
HIREXREH N BEBERTDRR
AEERE - WEARZ S EHR
TR E R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

a)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

19. Bl&RBLEHFEY

a) BERREFEMARE :

The Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Deposits with banks and BFERRIRTT R
other financial H 5 mirkrd
institutions PRETN 58,684 87,021
Cash on hand FEHE 2 7
Cash and cash equivalents LRE TSR
in the consolidated statements LR mER
of financial position and Z2Re RReEHEY
cash flows 58,686 87,028
The Company
RAF]
2013 2012
2= —FT——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash and cash equivalents PR RE
in the statement NREEEY
of financial position
— bank balances —RITHERR 2 4

R-ZE—Z=ZF+=-A=+—H8Z
RITHEBIZEFN T 0% £0.4%
(ZZB——F :0%%2045%)2™

BFIELH -

At 31 December 2013, bank balances carried interest at
market rates which range from 0% to 0.4% (2012: range
from 0% to 0.45%) per annum.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. BeRBLESEY (4)

(CONTINUED)
b)  Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash used in b) BB EHEKE RN &Y
operations: 0k :
The Group
rEEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Loss before taxation Gzl (37,144) (28,611)
Adjustments for: AT AE -
Deficit on revaluation of buildings BT B EA 35 24
Amortisation of leasehold land THE T #ds 22 22
Depreciation of other fixed assets HibEEEEFE 229 437
Available-for-sale investments: AEHERE
reclassification from equity FEBER
on impairment ERiboR | - 1,800
Finance costs b E RN - 3
Interest income FEHA (82) (457)
Net unrealised loss on trading RGFBEFH 2 RER
securities E51E8 58 21 3
(Gain)/loss on disposal of PEBEEE (W),
fixed assets E5tE (1) 3
Write-back of provision for FREERK AN 2 ]
construction costs (1,505) (1,452)
Equity-settled share-based LA REM 2 REE
payment expenses R 9,505 -
Changes in working capital: EEEEH
Increase in inventories FEEN (175) (2,359)
Decrease/(increase) in trading RGFHRL, (M)
securities 163 (376)
Increase in trade and E 5 & H A EUARIA
other receivables 0 (548) (1,394)
Increase/(decrease) in trade B 5 L EAENARIE
and other payables #in, CRd) 1,076 (1,955)
Cash used in operations KEMAZRE (28,404) (34,306)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. B 5 B JC Al HEA MR I
The Group The Company
rEE NS

2013 2012 2013 2012

E-ZF —E-—CF —E-ZF —E--F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T TR THT

Trade creditors ENE SRR 6,413 9,423 = -

Retentions payable EIHRE TR 2,451 2474 = -

Other creditors and Hiv R ARIE

accrued charges RIERT S 10,007 8,827 858 754
Financial liabilities measured &% A% AR 51/8R

atamortised cost ZeRAE 18,871 20,724 858 754

Receipt-in-advance jeten: 276 - - -

19,147 20,724 858 754

All of the trade and other payables, apart from the retentions
payable, are expected to be settled within one year or are
repayable on demand.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
the trade creditors based on the date of receipt of goods/
services is as follows:

BEMREREIN AR S KEAM
R RERE N —FA iz EK

BE -

RBEHR BANEZREREDRE
/RSB Z REATAT

The Group
rEE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month —(EBANT - 4
After 1 month but within 3 months —ERAEBEN BB ={EA 32 10
After 3 months but within 6 months —AABETBBEA = 246
Over 6 months BB EH 6,381 9,163
6,413 9,423
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

21. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 21. DBty R 2epe 2 RERR B AL B
TRANSACTIONS
The Company has a share option scheme which was KRABRZTE—=FAAZ+HBE
adopted on 25 June 2013 whereby the directors of the M—IERENRERT S B - ARAIE
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite EERBENBERRESERSEE B
eligible participants including the directors or any employee BAEESMBRARAIESSEMEES
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or an affiliate (EREBLGRB) U R AEE B
and any consultant, agent, or advisor of the Group or an NEEAIA RS - B AR
affiliate, to take up options at $1 consideration for each TZRERBEERE BRENRLD
acceptance. The options vest from the date of grant and are AEEEL N T-FREMA T -
then exercisable within a period of ten years. Each option MBRER TRHEARNREARF]
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share — AR B BAR D IRBEEE -
in the Company and is settled gross in shares.
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (a) BHESKEGAWT -
Number of Vesting Contractual life
instruments conditions of options
THE#HE B RY BIRESHHIR
Options granted to directors:
KYEFE2ERE
—on 18 December 2013 80,100,000 Immediate vest 10 years
-RZZE—=F+=A+/\H T RNER R T4
Options granted to eligible employees:
BYEEREILZERE
—on 18 December 2013 108,300,000 Immediate vest 10 years
-RZZE—=F+=A+\H T RNER R T4

Total share options granted 188,400,000

B BB A E
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

21. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 21. DMty R dSu 2 B 45 AL 5
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) (%)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) IRy I B B e b - 3 47
share options are as follows: T :
2013
—Z2-=F
Weighted
average
exercise Number
price of options
INREE 1 BB
TEE A
HK$
BT
Outstanding at the date of R BB RN ER
grant and at the end of the year B ARITIE 0.1168 188,400,000
Exercisable at the end of the period ~HiZRAT1T{E 0.1168 188,400,000

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had an
exercise price of HK$0.1168 and a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 9.96 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥

21. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(¢) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

21. DR 2y e Z HEAR B B2 B
(#0)

() JRlEJBCHE 2 16 B it ¢

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the share options granted is measured based
on binomial option pricing model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into the model
and expectation of early exercise is incorporated into

the model.

1ERE R A 3R AR
MAFELSERBBEREZA
FEAGE - REBRENGTR
FELRE - REEERNA
B BRENAOFHRFLE
ABAHIE - BHIRFITEDH
AR EBERE -

Fair value of share options 2013
and assumptions BREAFERBRS —E-=F
Fair value at the date of grant RELHBAFE HK$0.0505 7% 7T
Share price FHBHRE HK$0.1100 % T
Exercise price per share option BHEREITEE HK$0.1168 78 T
Expected volatility TR IR 66.57%
Option life 5 s BATR 10 years F
Expected dividend yield TEHRRR B Nil &
Risk-free rate A R 2.24%
Exercise multiple ITEEE 1.66-2.80

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
of the share prices of the Company. Expected dividend
yield is based on historical dividend payment record
of the Company. The risk-free rate was determined
with reference to the yield rate of the Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Notes with duration similar to the
expected life of the options. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in the
fair value measurement of the services received at
the date of grant. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

BEHREDER AN R B RERESE
B g o TEEIR B T E R AR AT
BRELRS - BERREL2E
FRNNEESREBE(FHEAR
AR 2 WS XREE -
ITEBBAREBERRESTHAF
EAFTELEEARE -

BRAERBIR R R G - N
FEWIRB A EFER L A Y
W EEHAZIRMT - IEEBABR
R 2 TSR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

22. DEFERRED TAXATION

a)

b)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

The Group and the Company had no material deferred
tax liabilities not provided for at 31 December 2013 and
2012.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company
have not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of HK$300,256,000 (2012:
HK$275,244,000) and HK$15,684,000 (2012:
HK$15,684,000), respectively, as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the tax losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant taxation
authority and the relevant taxable entity. The tax losses

do not expire under current tax legislation.
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22. JEREBLIH

a)

b)

e B 2 B HEBEI £

REBMEARNRRZE—=ZFR
—E—CHFFT-A=+—H#E
FAAREREHNEXNRERIEEA

& o

R BB 2 VB S B H
RZE—=F+ZA=+—
H: A&EBE RARQE I ER
300,256,000 L (=T —=4F :
275,244,000%7T) ) 15,684,000
B (ZE—=%F : 15,684,000
ETT) 2 RETHIE E R R IR AR
BEE BRABUEZTIGHER
AR E R TR EEERK
FERRT & K AET B BB i 2
o REBRITVBER - ZEH
TE SR R E o
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23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a)

Movements in components of equity

The Group

The reconciliation between the opening and

closing balances of each component of the Group’s

For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. B B Ak i
a)  HERSHLETE S 2 B
AL

AEEZEAEESHEKRED 2
MR A o 2 IR NAR &

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated R EEE o
statement of changes in equity.
The Company A ]
Reserves
ik
Capital Share
Share Share  redemption option  Contributed  Fair value Accumulated
capital  premium  reseve  reseve  surplus  reserve losses ~ Sub-total Total
hagE  BRE
ha  KfEE ik B BARB OVERE  2iEE it ot
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Thn Tn TEn TR T T Tin T T
At 1 January 2012 WE-—E-F-H 131,582 4785 vl - 289 3630 (105884 137549 269131
Changes in equity for 2012: “E-CERERY:
Loss for the year FMEE - - - - - - (405 (4408 (4408
Other comprehiensive loss for heyear ~ FMENMZESA - - - - - (3630) - (3630 (3630)
Total comprehensive loss for theyear ~ EMZEBELE - - - - - (36301 (4.408) 80%) 80%)
At 31 December 2012 W-E-F2f=1-8 131,582 478 1 - U8y - (110289 129514 261,09
At 1 January 2013 H-F-=F-f-A 131,582 4785 12 - 2807 - (110289) 129514 261,09
Changes in equity for 2013; “E-CERRES:
Loss for the year EpgE - - - - - - (128m) (12876 (12.876)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ EREH2ENE - = = = = 1,080 - 1,080 1,080
Total comprehensive loss for the year M2 AEEES - - - - - 108 (12876  (117%)  (11,7%)
Equitysetted share-based transactions ~ JIRMARIE EREERS - - - 9505 - - - 9,508 9,508

At 31 December 2013

AoE-=F2f=1-1

131,582 4185 12 9505 234897 1080 (123165) 12723 258805
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 23. WA Ko fili il (%)

b)  Share capital b) AR
Authorised and issued share capital HEIE R C TR
2013 2012
—E-=F —T--F
Number Number
of shares  Nominal value of shares  Nominal value
REE & RinEE HfE
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
Ti TEx TR FHL
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FREE0.05
HK$0.05 each AL LRk 3,000,000 150,000 3,000,000 150,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ZER BT
fully paid: RER
At 1 January and 31 December R=A—BRk
+-A=1+—-H 2,631,652 131,582 2,631,652 131,582
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LR AEABRERTRE R
dividends as declared from time to time and are ZRE - BEARREHLER
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the AE-—ZREE - FELTEAR
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard HARRZHHREEZARSE
to the Company's residual assets. &
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

¢)  Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve is governed by

the Bermuda Companies Act.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion
of the grant date fair value of unexercised share
options granted to directors, eligible employees
and other eligible participants of the Group
that has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based

payments in note 1(n)(ii).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company
and the aggregate of the share capital and the
share premium accounts of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the Company may make distributions to its
members out of contributed surplus in certain

circumstances.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in notes 1(e) and 1(h)
(i).

23. WA Bl i (41)
o BEYERUR NG

i)

1)

ii1)

iv)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

d)

e)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was approximately
HK$111,732,000 (2012: HK$124,608,000).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-
capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
borrowings and other financial liabilities) less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital comprises all components of

equity.

During 2013, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2012, was to maintain the net debt-
to-capital ratio at below 60%. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing
or sell assets to reduce debit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 23. HAR B A ()

e)  Capital management (Continued) e)  HAREH (&)
The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2013 and RNZE—=FR-_T——F+=
2012 was as follows: A=1T—BZ2BHKFEEERL
KT
The Group The Company
AEH KRF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F “T-—F —E-=F “F-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THET FET TERT TERT
Total debt BHEE
Financial liabilities included SIAB S REM
in trade and other EREEZ
payables SEBE 20 18,871 20,724 858 754
Less: Cash and cash B ReEREE
equivalents £EM 19 (58,686) (87,028) (2 (4)
Net (cash)/debt (Re)/BHIE (39,815) (66,304) 856 750
Capital BX 312,854 339,413 258,805 261,096
Net debt-to-capital ratio B FRLER
B X N/ATEA NATEA 0% 0%
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, neither the Company RoE—=FE/R —T——F+—
nor any of its subsidiaries were subject to any B=4+—8  &KXa) sk T H
externally imposed capital requirements. BN A A I AAN I eI
BARKE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in
the normal course of the Group's business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

a)  Credit risk
The Group’s and the Company’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and other receivables, amount
due from a subsidiary and cash at banks. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. The Group grants a
credit period of not more than 30 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 3
months overdue are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

In respect of the amount due from a subsidiary, the
Company reviews the recoverable amount of the
amount due from the subsidiary at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amount. In
this regard, the management considers that the
Company's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of cash at bank, the Group and the Company
limit their exposure to credit risk by placing deposits
with financial institutions that meet the established
credit rating. Given these high credit standing, the
management does not expect any counterparty to fail
to meet its obligations.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

a)

b)

Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, other than the
concentration of credit risk on the amount due from a
subsidiary, the Company does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group and the Company do not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

24. AL BE AT BB AP (1)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24. 2k b B A B R A P (1)
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b) B SRR (B)
The Group The Company
458 |
201 013 201
5-ck 5 5-cF 5
Contractual Contractual Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted undiscounted undiscounted!
cash outflow cash outflow cash outflow cash outflow
Gl it G AEFAR
Refid Rei bk Refd
Within 1 Carrying Within 1 Carying Within 1 Carrying Within 1 Carying
Year or on amount at ear or on amount at year or on amount at ear or on amount at
demand 31 December demand 31 December demand 31 December demand 31 December
#t=A Rt2R #t=R #tzA
-Ef =1-A2 -5 =t-B2 -5 S=fl2 -5 -8z
JRER BEE ARER A JREX BEE qHER FEE
HKS000 HKS /000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK§ 000 HKS 000
TR TR Tin Tén Tin T T fin
Trdeand otherpayatles  ERRERENER 18871 18871 20,124 20,704 858 858 764 754
¢) Interest rate risk ¢) A i B

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from cash and cash equivalents. The Group does
not anticipate significant impact to cash and cash
equivalents because the interest rates of bank

deposits are not expected to change significantly.

In the opinion of the Company's directors, the Group's
and the Company's exposure to interest rate risk is

insignificant.

d)  Currency risk
Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency in which they are measured.

The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to currency

risk is insignificant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

e)

Fair values

@

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as

follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement
date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured

using significant unobservable inputs

24. AL BE AT BB AP (1)

e)

A
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 24. 2k b B A B R A P (1)
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
e)  Fair values (Continued) e) AT (&)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value () HRFEFZEZEHEE

(Continued) REE(E)

Recurring fair value measurements KEMNTENE

2013

—E-ZF

The Group The Company
A58 YN
Fair value measurements as at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2013 categorised into 31 December 2013 categorised into
RZE-ZE+ZB=+-AATEFEAHEA RZB-ZE+ZB=T-BATEHEAEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

=0 2R F=8 af & 2R =R aif
HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
TR TER  fRn TR TER TR TR TER

Assets EE
Available-for-sale financial  FEHESR
assets AE 2,450 - - 2,450 2,450 - - 2,450
Trading securities R5ES 339 - - 339 - - - -
2,189 - - 2,189 2,450 - - 2,450
Recurring fair value measurements mEMATEE
2012
“T-—F
The Group The Company
158 ART
Fair value measurements as at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2012 categorised into 31 December 2012 categorised into
RZF-—E+-R=+-BATEHENER RZF-ZETZR=T-BATEENEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
£-4 E28 £=0 GHl -4 £=6 £=85 GH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThL TR T ThL THL TEL T
Assets iE
Available-for-sale financial  FTEHESR
assets gE 1370 - - 1370 1370 - - 1370
Trading securities REES 373 150 - 523 - - - -

1,743 150 - 1,893 1370 - - 1370
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

e) Fair values (Continued)

@

ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of financial assets traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the Group
and the Company is the closing price.

The fair value of financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based
on market conditions existing at end of each

reporting period.

There were no transfers of financial instruments

between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2013
and 2012.

24. AL BE AT BB AP (1)

e) AV (H)

(i)

11)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 25. WEMERE
(a) The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of (a) AEBEAHBEREBELEHOFTE
properties held under operating leases. The leases ZMEZEBAN c ZEHEZY
typically run for an initial period of one to three years, BEHREAR—E=F AEE
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are EHEEMAGRREELN - %F
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent HEHREREAES -
rentals.
At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease RZZ—=F+=A=+—8"
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in ERME 2 A HEEL ETEA1E
respect of properties are payable as follows: TZzARRENZEHELBN
™~
The Group as lessee REBEREEA
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Within 1 year —F AR 4,789 4,789
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUBEBEERFUARN 2,149 6,878
6,938 11,667
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company had no RZEBE—=FER_FT——_F+=58
operating lease commitments. =+—A8  AREESERERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 25. REBERYE (H)

(CONTINUED)

(b) At 31 December 2013, the Group contracted with () MZB—=F+"A=+—8"
tenants for the following total future minimum lease AKBEMF ZEETHOMBRE
receivables: WHERSEBUWT -

The Group as lessor AEBERHBEA

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Within 1 year —FLAR 3,674 1,885
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEUBEBEERFENARN 63 94
3,737 1,979
26. CONTINGENT LIABILITY 26. WA

In previous years, a subsidiary of the Group sold a property BEFE  AEE—HERBAREHE

to a buyer. The buyer alleged that the subsidiary made —EWETER - EFEBHE A

certain representations in selling of the property. The buyer REEDMERIEHE TEHRH - EAA

filed a claim with the High Court in Hong Kong claiming the ERERSER  BREEBEZD
repayment of consideration of approximately HK$9.8 million ¥ FT19 499,800,000 L 2 R1E ' &
paid in purchasing the property and rescission of the contract BUBA S XS HE@RAR - FIE KRB

together with related costs, interests and damages. The Ke ZWBRARRRZEHREERY R

subsidiary filed a defense against the claim. On 18 February R-W_ZE—WNF-_A+N\HB  BH

2014, the buyer filed a mediation notice with the High Court WSS AP R R M E R A - BRB

attempting to resolve the claim through mediation. On the HAABARR - AR SFERE

same day, the High Court fixed a hearing to be held on 5 RZE—NFRARBRTRA K

May 2014. The directors of the Company are of the view NAESERBEFTRHRDNERTEGE

that the buyer’s claim is based on unreasonable and invalid RESEEEALESEERE &R

grounds and therefore unfounded. In view of the inherent EERTFAZNIETETE M Faasd

uncertainties of the legal proceedings, the outcome of which AP BOER 52785 - A AFRIESE
cannot be estimated reliably at this stage, the directors of R TN EIwE P IEL B ERE -

the Company considered that no specific provision should be
made in the financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's
directors as disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

27.

HREEANLLZY

BRI B4
AEBT2ERAEHE (B
RMETFAREZ XN ARARE
ERELRMESMKEZET
RSHFMALHE) T

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Short-term employee benefits SHiR B2 F 17,383 14,958
Post-employment benefits BB AR 110 69
Termination benefits HIEE REF 1,600 -
Equity compensation benefits I A S M A 8,162 -
27,255 15,027
b)  Financing arrangements b) RERH
As at
31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary fEW—FE R XM E Q& ZIE 682 673

This represents the amount advanced to Hong Fok
Land Investment Limited, a subsidiary of Hong Fok
Land International Limited (“HFL"), a fellow subsidiary
of the Company.

The outstanding balance with this fellow subsidiary is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment
terms. The amount due from the fellow subsidiary is
included in “Trade and other receivable” (note 18).
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, no provision for
bad or doubtful debts have been made in respect of
this amount due. The maximum amount outstanding
during the year is approximately HK$704,000 (2012:
HK$727,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

c) Other related party transactions

i)

ii)

During the year ended 31 December
2013, the Group received management
fee of approximately HK$2,737,000 (2012:
HK$2,367,000) from a subsidiary of HFL,
for share of administrative expenses. The
management fee is determined quarterly
between the respective parties after
negotiations having regard to the cost of services
provided. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, this transaction was conducted in
the ordinary course of the Group's business on
terms mutually agreed by both parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Group paid building management fee of
approximately HK$235,000 (2012: HK$291,000)
to a subsidiary of HFL for the completed
properties held for sale owned by the Group.
In the opinion of the Company’s directors,
this transaction was conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of
the Group's business.

28. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the immediate

parent and ultimate controlling party of the Company to

be Hong Fok Corporation Limited, which is incorporated

in Cayman Islands with limited liability, and Hong Fok

Corporation Limited, which is incorporated with limited

liability and listed in the Republic of Singapore, respectively.

The immediate parent company does not produce financial

statements available for public use while the ultimate

controlling party produces financial statements under

Singapore Financial Reporting Standards for public use.

27.

28.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

HHEBEA LS (%)
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=t+—RALEFE £%£@
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

29. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issuance of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued several amendments and standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2013 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.

29.

RBEE_F =414
Zob— kAR B AU N R
L EA TR RS it
Z RS

BEHEUHRR2TEAY  BE
GHMAERMBEANARBEE_Z
—=F T+ A=t—BUEFELERZ
EFT R R (B RMERT R A ERIARR U
FHBHERPERMR) - HEEAKER
B2 IERT BRI o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BEs 2 &R
ZEsTHEEN

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation

— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

HEBGEAUNF 2N 2HTA - 25 - HAHTHEERTHRIEAEET

Amendment to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and

continuation of hedge accounting

HERBGLERFE IR TETATERE A EENER]

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 27, Investment entities

UEBMBEWMEERE 105 - BEMBEREERE 1258 %
EEMBREERIZE 27K 2ER] - REEFE

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for

non-financial assets

HEBGTEANF 6N 2IER] - KEHHEE KT HE

HK(FRIC) - Int 21, Levies

B8 (BRMBHRERBREG) L2155 4
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1 January 2014

—E-mF—H—H

1 January 2014

—E—-mF—HF—H

1 January 2014
—E-UF—H—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 # % & — =4+ _H =+—H IF /¥

29. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29.

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

RBEE_F =124
Zob— HOR AR B T N R
L e TR RS it
Z I RS ()

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BHsi 2 &R

ZEFTEIEEM
Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
HEBUGMERR - BB BEHEER _—E—FFF _F— _F —ZE-MFE+A—H
FEHHEENER]
Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
HEBUGMERR - BB BEHEER _—E—FFF _F— _F —ZE-MFE+A—H
FEHHEENER]
Amendments to HKAS 19, Defined benefit plan: Employee contributions 1 July 2014
HEBGTERNE R ZAER] - THETFIFE - lESHS —ZE-MFE+A—H

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BBV MELRNEIW 2T A

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7, Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and transition disclosures

HEBMBREERE IR LB BMBWMELERE 7R &5
BBRI TSR & ERIFE 9 A E EAH A R ABE R FE

HKFRS 14, Regulatory deferral accounts
BAMBGMERERNE 145 - EEFELKRE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of

what the impact of these amendments and standards is

has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and

financial position.

Annual Report 2013 —F—=4F4EHR

1 January 2015
—E-hF—H—H

1 January 2015

e

1 January 2016
—E—R¥—HA—H

REERETERIRIRANZEFES
RAEBIEEE AEERTREB R
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it Z.ZHAAIL XEEREER L
MAEET RER DR AT G H AL E 2
MERBRMBRAEEBRTE o
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Particulars of the Group's major properties held for sale as at 31 REER-ZZE—=F+=-A=1+—HFFED
December 2013 are as follows: EZEEMEFBLOT

Percentage

Gross floor area interest attributable

HIREMEE to the Group
Location Existing Use sq. m. EEE LR
2 RIE AR FHK Batt
30 units of THE ICON, 38 Conduit Road, Residential 1,953 100%
Mid-levels, Hong Kong
BEAFILTEBEISH F=

THE ICONHY301E B iz
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